NEWTON SOLNEY
When the Anglian invaders came up the Trent in the sixth century, they would have found Newton Solney a very attractive place, sitting at the confluence of two rivers, the Trent, which could be forded here and the Dove.   They called it Niwantune meaning the new farm and from this tiny nucleus, the village slowly grew.    When the Vikings, in their turn, raided Mercia and destroyed the Saxon monastery at Repton (873-4) they may also have sacked and occupied Newton Solney.   After the Conquest (1066) the king owned Newton Solney which appears in the Doomsday Book along with Bretby.   Together, they had twenty villagers. In 1205 Alured de Solennaia, a Norman knight, inherited Newton.   By about 1300 it became known as Newton Solney.   Norman knights were passionately fond of hunting and the de Solneys carved a hunting park out of the extensive woodland.   The first church was built in the twelfth century.   There would also have been a manor house, probably somewhere near the present Newton Park Hotel.   The lord of the manor would have had a mill and fishing rights on the river and a tithe barn is recorded in 1528.   With the death of John, the last male de Solney in 1390, the manor passed through several important local families and was finally bought by a local attorney, Abraham Hoskins who built the house, now the hotel.   The village slowly grew to a population of 181 in 1801 and now has about 800, the increase mainly resulting from a new housing development off Blacksmith's Lane.   The Main Road was declared a conservation area in 1978. 
1 
THE NEWTON PARK HOTEL 

This house was built about 1800 by Abraham Hoskins Senior, attorney and land speculator. Designed by Francis Bernasconi, the house of two and a half storeys, has 5 x 4 bays, of which the central three break slightly forward.   In 1836 it was bought by Lord Chesterfield and let to William Worthington, a brewer, who extended it. Robert Ratcliff, another brewer, then bought it and also extended it, adding the two storey projection on the front.   In 1959 the house was converted into a hotel. 
2 
BLADON CASTLE 

Standing on a ridge above Newton Solney and looking east, this house has superb views over the countryside.   This is no doubt why Abraham Hoskins Senior chose to build his romantic folly here. In 1779 he paid Sir Geoffrey Wyatville for a design for Bladon Hill.   The folly was converted to domestic use, probably for Abraham Hoskins Junior.   It was occupied by American troops in the Second World War. 
3 
CEDAR HOUSE 

This Regency house has its own lodge on the corner of Farm Lane.   It is a Grade II listed building dating from the early nineteenth century.   It was once called The Villa and appears on old maps as such.   This was a characteristic name of the period.    It may have been built by Abraham Hoskins Junior who, in 1818, began to build and let villas and houses to men of means and "commercial gentlemen from Burton". 
4 
THE OLD VICARAGE 

Built in the early nineteenth century by Hoskins and given to the church.   In recent times it was considered too big and a modem vicarage was built nearer to the church. 
5 
ROW OF COTTAGES 

These cottages were built in the early nineteenth century for those working in the brickyards, which were behind the Brickmakers Arms public house.   Grassy hillocks can still be seen - the remains of the workings.   The industry collapsed in 1890 but not before it had enriched the owner John.  Hopkins.   His daughter's family, the Marbrows, became one of the main landowners in the vicinity. 
6 
THE BRICKMAKERS ARMS 

It is believed that this building has always been a public house.   Superficially, it looks early nineteenth century but there could be an older structure behind it.
7 
NUMBERS 3, 5 AND 7 MAIN STREET 

Solid and pleasing Victorian houses, these were probably all built at the same time, late eighteenth century - or early nineteenth.   'Mercia', with the pedimented doorway, was probably built first, about 1840.   No.3, 'The Croft', is a listed building and may have originally been a barn.   These houses are built of bricks produced at the local brickyard and many of them have the names Marbrow and Newton on them. 
8 
POLICE HOUSE 

This red brick building dates from about 1950 when police houses were being built in villages all over the country.   It is now in private ownership.   In 1857 a lock-up was built, all traces of which seem to have disappeared.   The lock-up was built to replace the village stocks.   Kelly's directory of 1908 mentions a constable and a police station but not its whereabouts. 
9 
GRANGE FARM 

In 1950 this became the main farmhouse when land was acquired from neighbouring properties thus virtually making a new farm. 
10 
THE GRANGE 

This replaces an older farmhouse that stood on this site. It may have been built by Robert Ratcliff about 1896 as his own home. 
11 
THE POPLARS 

This is a typical Derbyshire farmhouse of the eighteenth century which has less land attached to it now than in former times. 
12 
TRENT FARM 

The original farm house has gone but a fine eighteenth century barn still standing. 
13 
THE VILLAGE INSTITUTE 

Originally, this was a rifle range for the volunteers of the First World War.   A new building was given to the village by Colonel Ratcliff and the architect was Arthur Eaton.   Between the wars it flourished as a club with cricket, tennis and a bowling green. 
14 
THE UNICORN INN 

This started as a farmhouse in the early nineteenth century.   When it was owned by the Ratcliff family it was an inn, then later sold to Bass Brewery. 

15
THE OLD FORGE 

Stands at the comer of Blacksmith’s Lane.   There was a blacksmith here in 1899 but by 1908 he had gone out of business.
16 
THE POST OFFICE 

This building was probably put up in the middle of the nineteenth century.   A directory of 1895 says that the post office was also a bakery and grocery shop.
17 
FAIRFIELD 

Built by the Ratcliff family, this is thought to be contemporary with 'Cedar House'.   It was let by the Ratcliff Estate for many years then sold as a private house. 
18
TRENT LANE

This ancient tradeway leads down to the ford.    There are some Victorian cottages, behind which is the modernised old wheelwright's house.   In 1895 there were two wheelwrights in Newton Solney.   One house, 'The Vine', may be seventeenth century and is certainly one of the oldest houses in the village.   Next there are some modem houses and the road ends at the Trent.    Across the river there is a World War Two pillbox, put there to prevent a possible crossing of the river by German tanks.   During the early days of the war, the Home Guard attempted to cross the ford but found it extremely difficult because of the constantly shifting bed of the river, but it is just possible for tanks to do it - hence the pillbox. 
19 
THE SCHOOL 

Built in 1860 with modem additions.   This was the National School provided by Sir Henry Every, who was Lord of the Manor and a large landowner. 
20 
WATERSIDE FARM 

This attractive Georgian brick farmhouse has been closely surrounded by modern housing. 
21 
THE ALMSHOUSES 

These were given to the village by John Higgot, a well-to-do local bachelor, for the old and poor of Newton Solney in 1876.   They are still in use today and have been recently renovated. 
22 
SUNNYSIDE 

Mr Percy Ratcliff gave these modern almshouses to the village as a war memorial in 1951.   Originally, the intention was to create a village green with a conventional type war memorial such as was appearing all over the country at that time.   Instead, the almshouses were built as a more practical monument. 
23 
BEEHIVE COTTAGE 

This octagonal building, with modern additions, stands on the comer of Church Lane and was built about the early nineteenth century.   It may have been the lodge for 'Rock House'.   The pleasant lane, framed by an avenue of lime trees, leads to the church. 
24 
THE COTTAGE 

This charming house dates from 1720, with a later extension added on the north side in 1840.   In typical cottage style of the late Georgian period, it has a very fine wrought iron balcony on the west front. 
25 
THE CHURCH 

This is a Grade B listed building, mostly fourteenth and fifteenth century but with a twelfth century Norman doorway.   Originally this was a chapel of ease, owned and served by the canons of Repton Priory for the parishioners of Newton Solney.   By 1650, it had become a parochial chapel served by a curate.   Thomas Gayfere, the famous mason who died in 1827, is buried in the churchyard. 
SEE PLAN ON NEXT PAGE
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